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IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
FOR THE WESTERN DISTRICT OF OKLAHOMA

(1) RICHARD ANDERSON, individually
and on behalf of all others similarly
situated;

(2) LONNETTE HAY, as legal guardian of
Trevor Hay And Taren Hay, individually
and on behalf of all others similarly
situated;

(3) JANIS HARRIS, as legal guardian of
Rhonda Cassell, individually and on behalf
of all others similarly situated,

(4) LANCE AND SHERRY DAVIS, as
legal guardians of Tomas Matthew Davis,
individually and on behalf of all others
similarly situated; and

(5) LORI TAYLOR, individually and on
behalf of all others similarly situated.

Plaintiffs
V.

(1) ED LAKE, in his official capacity as
DIRECTOR, OKLAHOMA
DEPARTMENT OF HUMAN
SERVICES,

(2) BECKY PASTERNIK-IKARD, in her
official capacity as CHIEF EXECUTIVE
OFFICER, OKLAHOMA HEALTH
CARE AUTHORITY

Defendants.

Case No. CIV-17-1236-HE

Class Action Complaint
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COMPLAINT FOR DECLARATORY AND INJUNCTIVE RELIEF
Plaintiffs bring this action on behalf of themselves, and all others similarly

situated, and those individuals they seek to represent (‘“Putative Class Members”), by and
through their undersigned counsel of record, and for their Complaint against the
above-named Defendants, state as follows:

INTRODUCTION

1. This is an action brought by seniors and adults with disabilities, all residents of the
State of Oklahoma, who are current recipients of the Medicaid ADvantage Waiver
or the Medicaid In-Home Supports Waiver for Adults, who have received notice
from Defendant Lake’s agency, the Department of Human Services (DHS), that
their waiver services will be terminated effective December 1, 2017, and who are
at serious risk of institutionalization as a result of the arbitrary decision to
terminate waiver services solely for economic reasons.!

2. Defendant Lake’s arbitrary termination of waiver services without assessing for
and providing alternative services places Plaintiffs at serious risk of
institutionalization.

3. Plaintiffs who receive the ADvantage waiver are either “frail elderly persons” or

are adults over the age of 21 who have a physical disability. Plaintiffs receiving

! Letter from Karen Poteet, Interim Director, Aging Services, Oklahoma Department of
Human Services, to ADvantage Member, (Oct. 31, 2017) (attached as Exhibit 1) and
Letter from Marie Moore, Interim Director, Developmental Disabilities Services,
Oklahoma Department of Human Services, to In-Home Supports Waiver for Adults
Recipients, (Oct. 31, 2017) (attached as Exhibit 2).
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the ADvantage waiver are individuals requiring a nursing home level of care, as
determined by nursing staff of the aging services division of DHS?, who receive
services, such as skilled nursing, personal care, home-delivered meals, and
therapeutic services, through the ADvantage waiver to remain in a
community-based living setting, either in their own home, or in the home of a
family member, instead of in an institution such as a nursing home.’

4. Plaintiffs who receive the In-Home Supports waiver for adults are individuals over
age 18 who have developmental disabilities and receive waiver services, such as
nutrition services, nursing care, therapeutic services, and physical home
modifications (such as a ramp or roll-in shower) in order to remain in a
community-based living setting, either in their own home, or the home of a family
member, instead of in an institution.*

5. As a result of Defendant Lake’s actions, Plaintiffs and thousands of putative class
members are at serious risk for institutionalization.” DHS itself has estimated that
at least 10,000 individuals who will lose waiver services could be forced to live in

institutions, including nursing homes.®

2 http://www.okhca.org/individuals.aspx?id=8143

3 http://www.okhca.org/individuals.aspx?1d=8143

4 http://www.okhca.org/individuals.aspx?id=8149
Shttp://newsok.com/without-a-deal-10000-people-could-be-forced-into-nursing-homes/art
icle/5569386
Shttp://www.okdhs.org/OKDHS%20PDF%?20Library/Office%200f%20Communications/
DHSBudgetWorkProgramfor$§69MLossofFunding ocom 10252017.pdf
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JURISDICTION AND VENUE

6. This is an action for declaratory and injunctive relief for violation of Title II of the
Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (ADA), 42 U.S.C. § 12132 and Section
504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (Section 504), (29 U.S.C. § 794).

7. Jurisdiction is based on 28 U.S.C. §§ 1331 and 1342 for a violation of Title II of
the ADA, and Section 504. Plaintiffs’ claims for declaratory and injunctive relief
are authorized under 28 U.S.C. §§ 2201 - 2202.

8. Venue is proper in this Court under 28 U.S.C. § 1391(b). Defendant Ed Lake is
sued in his official capacity, and his official place of business is located within
Oklahoma County, in the Western District of Oklahoma.

9. Defendant Becky Pasternik-Ikard is sued in her official capacity, and her official
place of business is located within Oklahoma County, in the Western District of
Oklahoma.

PARTIES
Plaintiffs
Plaintiff Richard Anderson

10. Plaintiff Richard Anderson is a 49 year old person with physical disabilities
residing in Norman, Oklahoma.

11. Plaintiff Anderson has an active community life. He is one of the founding

members of Oklahoma ADAPT. He is a songwriter, enjoys computers and
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technology, and has lived independently in the same apartment complex for almost
32 years.

12. Plaintiff Anderson is diagnosed with cerebral palsy. Plaintiff is unable to walk and
utilizes the assistance of an electric wheelchair.

13. Plaintiff Anderson is unable to bathe, brush his teeth or groom independently, and
1s unable to cook or prepare his own meals.

14. Plaintiff Anderson receives the services of the Medicaid ADvantage Waiver
Program including the assistance of a home health aide, specialized adaptive
equipment, and a Life Alert to perform his daily life activities.

15. Plaintiff Anderson live alones and does not have a caretaker. Plaintiff does not
have any family support. As such, the aide provided to him by the ADvantage
Waiver Program is critical.

16. Plaintiff Anderson receives 19.5 hours of personal care from a home health aide
each week. Plaintiff Anderson’s home health aide assists him every day with his
personal needs, such as bathing, grooming, housework, and preparing meals.

17.Plaintiff Anderson learned of the elimination of his ADvantage Waiver in
November 2017 when he received a letter from OKDHS which provided no

alternative sources of care.
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18. Because this program is essential to his care, Plaintiff Anderson will be at risk of
being forced into a nursing home or other institutional facility, or of imminent
death, if his services are terminated.

19. Plaintiff Anderson does not want to be forced to live in a nursing home. He wants
to remain living at his home where he can maintain an active community life.

Plaintiff Trevor Hay (through his Legal Guardian Lonnette Hay)

20. Plaintiff Trevor Hay is a 21 year old person with developmental disabilities,
including autism, attention deficit hyperactivity disorder, and connective tissue
syndrome. Plaintiff Trevor Hay lives in Tulsa, Oklahoma.

21.Plaintiff Trevor Hay resides with his mother, who is his sole caretaker and legal
guardian, Lonnette Hay, and his twin sister, Taren Hay.

22. Plaintiff Trevor Hay functions at the level of a 5 year old, according to test results.
He requires the level of care provided in an Intermediate Care Facility for
Individuals with Intellectual Disabilities (ICF/IID). He requires assistance with all
activities of daily living, including bathing, dressing, and toileting. Plaintiff Trevor
Hay’s food must be prepared for him and he must be monitored while eating.

23. Plaintiff Trevor Hay’s speech is unintelligible.

24, Plaintiff Trevor Hay cannot be left without supervision.

25.Plaintiff Trevor Hay receives medical care and support from Oklahoma’s

Medicaid In-Home Supports for Adults Waiver.
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26. Plaintiff Trevor Hay receives 20 hours per week of in-home Habilitation Training
Specialist (HTS) services. He also receives 17.5 hours per week of out of the home
supervised vocational employment services.

27.Without 37.5 hours per week of care, Plaintiff Trevor Hay will be forced to be
placed in a nursing home or other institution.

28. Plaintiff Trevor Hay’s mother was diagnosed with breast cancer in 2017, has had a
mastectomy, completed chemotherapy, and will undergo reconstruction surgery on
November 29, 2017. Plaintiff Trevor Hay’s grandmother will be caring for
Plaintiff Trevor Hay during his mother’s recovery, but will not be able to do so
without the additional services provided by the IHS waiver.

29. Plaintiff’s mother learned of the elimination of the IHS Waiver in November 2017
when she received a letter from OKDHS. The letter did not provide alternative
sources of care for Trevor. Trevor was not offered Medicaid Home Health Care, or
the Community Waiver as potential alternative care. Due to his high level of need,
Trevor will be forced to be institutionalized in an ICF, nursing home or other
facility.

30. Plaintiff Trevor Hay does not want to live in an institutional setting; he wants to
live at home with his mother and sister, Taren Hay.

Plaintiff Taren Hay (through her Legal Guardian Lonnette Hay)
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31.Plaintiff Taren Hay is a 21 year old person with developmental disabilities,
including autism, attention deficit hyperactivity disorder, and connective tissue
syndrome. Plaintiff Taren Hay lives in Tulsa, Oklahoma.

32.Plaintiff Taren Hay resides with her mother, who is her sole caretaker and legal
guardian, Lonnette Hay, and her twin brother, Trevor Hay.

33. Plaintiff Taren Hay functions at the level of a 5 year old, according to test results.
She requires the level of care provided in an Intermediate Care Facility for
Individuals with Intellectual Disabilities (ICF/IID). She requires assistance with all
activities of daily living, including bathing, dressing, and toileting. Plaintiff Taren
Hay’s food must be prepared for her and she must be monitored while eating.

34. Plaintiff Taren Hay’s speech is often unintelligible.

35. Plaintiff Taren Hay cannot be left without supervision.

36. Plaintiff Taren Hay receives medical care and support from Oklahoma’s Medicaid
In-Home Supports for Adults Waiver.

37.Plaintiff Taren Hay receives 20 hours per week of in-home Habilitation Training
Specialist (HTS) services. She also receives 17.5 hours per week of out of the
home supervised vocational employment services.

38. Without 37.5 hours per week of care, Plaintiff Taren Hay will be forced to be

placed in a nursing home or other institution.
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39. Plaintiff Taren Hay’s mother was diagnosed with breast cancer in 2017, has had a
mastectomy, completed chemotherapy, and will undergo reconstruction surgery on
November 29, 2017. Plaintiff Taren Hay’s grandmother will be caring for Plaintiff
Taren Hay while her mother recovers from surgery, but will not be able to do so
without the additional services provided by the IHS waiver.

40. Plaintiff’s mother learned of the elimination of the IHS Waiver in November 2017
when she received a letter from OKDHS. The letter did not provide alternative
sources of care for Taren. Taren was not offered Medicaid Home Health Care, or
the Community Waiver as potential alternative care. Due to her high level of need,
Taren will be forced to be institutionalized in an ICF, nursing home or other
facility.

41.Plaintiff Taren Hay does not want to live in an institutional setting; she wants to
live at home with her mother and brother, Trevor Hay.

Plaintiff Tomas Matthew Davis (through his Legal Guardians, Lance and Sherry Davis)
42.Plaintiff Tomas Matthew Davis is a 26 year old individual with disabilities
residing in Noble, Oklahoma. Plaintiff Davis lives with his parents, Lance and
Sherry Davis, who are his legal guardians.

43.Plaintiff Davis has diagnoses of Cerebral Palsy, Intellectual Disability, Epilepsy

with Grand Mal seizures, Schizophrenia, and Acute Asthma. He functions at about

the level of a 7-year-old, according to testing. His disabilities require that he
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receive total care. He cannot walk, stand, or sit unassisted. He uses an electric
wheelchair; however, Tomas can only operate his wheelchair unassisted for very
short distances.

44. Plaintiff Davis is unable to bathe or dress himself. Tomas requires assistance for
all transfers to and from his wheelchair, including in and out of bed. Precautions
such as frequent repositioning must be taken to avoid pressure sores. His food
must be cooked for him, cut into small pieces, and his eating monitored as he
chokes easily.

45. Plaintiff Davis is unable to administer his own medications or take himself to
doctor appointments. He requires assistance for all aspects of toileting.

46. Tomas has issues with memory recall and has difficulty retaining information; he
often cannot remember people that he doesn’t see on a daily basis even though he
has known the person for years.

47.Tomas currently takes nine different prescription medications daily along with
several over-the-counter medications also recommended by his doctor, such as
stool softeners and allergy medications.

48. DHS administers the Oklahoma In Home Supports Waiver (IHS Waiver). To be
eligible for IHS Waiver, DHS determined that Tomas requires the level of care
that is provided in an Intermediate Care Facility for Individuals with Intellectual

Disabilities (ICF/IID). Instead of going to an ICF, he lives at home and receives 16

10
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hours per week of Habilitation Training Specialist Services (HTS) and 40 hours
per week of Vocational Services through Oklahoma’s IHS Waiver program. In
addition, Tomas receives 29 hours per week of personal care assistance and one
additional hour of personal care each weekend for laundry.

49.The IHS Waiver also allows Tomas’ nine prescription medications to be paid for
by Medicaid. Without the ITHS waiver, Oklahoma Medicaid limits prescription
coverage for adults to six prescriptions per month. Without the additional
coverage, Plaintiff’s parents cannot afford Tomas’s nine medications.

50.Plaintiff Davis’s parents were notified by DHS that Tomas’s ITHS Waiver
Vocational Services will be terminated on December 1, 2017. In addition, Plaintiff
Davis’s parents were notified that Tomas’s Personal Care Services will be
terminated. This means that all Tomas’s DHS services will be terminated.

51. Plaintiff Davis’s parents were informed of the elimination of the IHS Waiver in
November 2017, when they received a letter from OKDHS. The letter did not
provide alternative sources of care for Tomas. He was not offered the Community
Waiver as potential alternative care.

52. Without the THS Waiver for Tomas, Tomas’s parents will be forced to place
Tomas in an ICF.

53. When assessed for the IHS Waiver, OKDHS determined the 16 hours a week of

HTS services, 29 hours per week of personal care services and 40 Vocational

11
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Employment hours are the services Tomas needs in order to have his medical
needs met at home, rather than in an institution.

54. Tomas’s HTS works two hours each morning, seven days per week getting Tomas
out of bed, assisting him with toileting, personal hygiene, meal preparation and
breakfast, dressing and getting ready for his vocational center. His HTS also works
two hours each evening, seven days per week assisting him with meal time,
personal hygiene, bathing, and getting Tomas ready for and into bed. The IHS
Waiver also provides Tomas 40 hours per week vocational employment services
through Oklahoma’s IHS Waiver. These are small group vocational services where
he receives a high level of support with a 1 to 5 staff ratio.

55. Without the 85 hours of care per week, Plaintiff Davis’s parents will be forced to
be place Tomas in a nursing home or other institution. Plaintiff Davis’s parents
want him to remain in their home and receive services there. Tomas also wishes to
remain in his home, with his family and people who are familiar to him.

56. Plaintiff Davis’s parents both work full-time jobs outside of the home and are
unable to provide Tomas the care he requires due to their work demands. Plaintiff
Davis’s parents must continue working as without both their incomes they would
no longer be able to afford their house payment and they would lose their home,

which means Tomas losing his home as well.

12
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57.Plaintiff Davis’s parents have both sustained physical injury from years of lifting
Tomas and can no longer provide the level of care he needs without the assistance
of paid staff, an expense they cannot afford to pay themselves.

58.Notice of the termination of the IHS has interfered already with Plaintiff Davis’s
care. It has led to several of Tomas’s personal care staff quitting in anticipation of
needing to find other employment.

59. Plaintiff’s parents believe this change in routine and uncertainty has contributed
to, if not caused, an increase in Tomas’ seizures, including a Grand Mal seizure on
November 14, 2017.

Plaintiff Rhonda Cassell (through Legal Guardian Janis Harris)

60. Plaintiff Rhonda Cassell is a 43 year old individual who lives with her mother and
legal guardian, Janis Harris, in Durant, Oklahoma.

61. Plaintiff Cassell has been diagnosed with Traumatic Brain Injury (TBI), Seizure
Disorder and double vision.

62. Plaintiff Cassell’s TBI occurred at age 7 when she was hit by a car and was
comatose for three months and was not expected to survive. She is paralyzed on
the left side. Rhonda is highly susceptible to falls due to her paralysis and double
vision. She uses a wheelchair most of the time as she can only walk very short
distances with assistance. If there is no handrail, she requires physical support with

walking. She requires assistance getting in and out of vehicles.

13
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63. Plaintiff Cassell requires assistance and supervision anytime she goes out in the
community. She cannot be by herself as she is susceptible to being taken
advantage of by others, is impulsive, frequently falls, and is unaware of danger.
She will give her money away to family members.

64. Plaintiff Cassell requires assistance with bathing and dressing. She is incontinent
and wears briefs. She has frequent “accidents” and soils her clothes. When she has
accidents, her caregivers must change and wash her clothing and clean her body.
She cannot cook and her food must be cut up to prevent choking.

65. Plaintiff Cassell receives medical care through Oklahoma’s Medicaid In Home
Supports Waiver. Her In Home Supports Waiver will end December 1, 2017.

66. DHS administers the Oklahoma In Home Supports Waiver (IHS Waiver). To be
eligible for the IHS Waiver, DHS determined that Rhonda requires the level of
care that is provided in an Intermediate Care Facility for Individuals with
Intellectual Disabilities (ICF/IID).

67.Instead of going to an ICF, Cassell lives at home and receives 28 hours per week
of Habilitation Training Specialist Services (HTS) through Oklahoma’s THS
Waiver program. She has been authorized to receive this amount of services for
the past 20 years. Without these hours of care, she will be forced to be placed in a

nursing home or other institution.

14
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68. Plaintiff Cassell has an HTS who works 28 hours per week and takes care of all

her needs. This HTS provides all of Rhonda’s care during the 28 hours she works.
The HTS bathes Rhonda, dresses her, and feeds her. The HTS also toilets and
changes Rhonda’s briefs throughout the day. The HTS assists her when she has
toileting “accidents” by changing and washing her clothing and cleaning her body.
The HTS monitors Rhonda to prevent and limit her frequent falls. She assists

Rhonda anytime she goes into the community.

69. Plaintiff Cassell’s mother provides care for Rhonda beyond the 28 hours her HTS

provides. Because Rhonda requires 24-hour care, Cassell’s mother must meet all
of her needs beyond those of her HTS. The HTS services allows her mother to

meet these additional care needs.

70.Cassell’s mother has been diagnosed with Lupus, Osteoarthritis, and Congestive

71.

Heart Failure. Her health conditions makes it impossible to provide the additional
care Rhonda needs on a daily basis if she loses her IHS Waiver services. Plaintiff’s
mother is unable to provide 24-hour care she requires and will place her in an
institution if her IHS Waiver is eliminated.

Plaintiff’s mother learned of the elimination of the IHS Waiver in November 2017
when she received a letter from OKDHS. The letter did not provide alternative
sources of care for Rhonda. She was not offered Medicaid Home Health Care, or

the Community Waiver as potential alternative care. Due to her high level of need,

15
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Rhonda will be forced to be institutionalized in an ICF, nursing home or other
facility.

72.Rhonda does not want to be forced to move to an institution. She has her own
bedroom that she decorated. She enjoys living with her mother, visiting friends,
and shopping. Plaintiff Cassell wants to stay in her home that she has lived in for
many years.

Plaintiff Lori Taylor

73.Plaintiff Lori Taylor is a 52 year old person with physical disabilities residing in
Norman, Oklahoma. Plaintiff Taylor enjoys creative projects, including
photography, and has won photography competitions.

74.Plaintiff Taylor is an active community member, donating her time to serve on the
Steering Committee for the City of Norman’s ADA Transition Plan. She is also
one of the founding members of Oklahoma ADAPT.

75.Plaintiff Taylor has cerebral palsy, and is unable to walk. Plaintiff uses the
assistance of a wheelchair.

76.Plaintiff Taylor is able to brush her teeth, bathe, and use the restroom
independently, but she is unable to groom herself or transport herself from her bed

without assistance.

16
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77.Plaintiff Taylor receives services through the Medicaid ADvantage Waiver
program. Such services include the assistance of a hospital bed, home health aide,
specialized adaptive equipment, and a Life Alert.

78.Plaintiff Taylor has lived independently since she was 17 years old. Prior to
receiving the ADvantage waiver services, Taylor’s ex-husband was her caretaker.

79. Plaintiff Taylor now lives alone and does not have a caretaker. Plaintiff’s closest
family member, her mother, lives two hours away and does not have the physical
ability to assist Plaintiff Taylor with her essential daily needs.

80. Plaintiff Taylor receives 17.75 hours of services from a home health aide,
provided by the ADvantage program. The home health aide comes to Taylor’s
home daily to assist with her personal needs, such as bathing, physically getting
out of bed, housework and cooking.

81. Without the help of the home health aide provided by the program, Taylor would
not be able to physically get into or out of her bed. If Plaintiff is not in bed, and
her aide does not come to assist her, she will be forced to sleep in her motorized
wheelchair. Plaintiff then would be susceptible to infection in the form of swollen
limbs and pressure sores.

82. Without her home health aide, Plaintiff Taylor also will not be able to groom

herself or perform daily self-care activities.
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83. Plaintiff Taylor learned of the elimination of her ADvantage Waiver in November
2017 when she received a letter from DHS which provided no alternative sources
of care.

84.Because the services provided through the ADvantage Waiver are essential to her
care, Plaintiff Taylor will be forced into a nursing home or other institutional
facility if her services are terminated.

85. Plaintiff Taylor does not want to live in a nursing home. Plaintiff Taylor wants to
continue living in and serving her community through art and activism for people
with disabilities.

Defendants

86.Defendant Becky Pasternik-Ikard is the Chief Executive Officer of Oklahoma
Health Care Authority (OHCA). The OHCA is the single state agency for
Medicaid administration. See 63 O.S. §§5000.24-5029.

87.Defendant Ed Lake is the Director of the Oklahoma State Department of Human
Services (DHS). Acting under color of state law, Defendant Lake holds executive
authority over the administration of the ADvantage Waiver and In-Home Supports
Waiver programs since DHS is the entity responsible for administering the waiver

programs once established by OHCA. See 56 O.S. § 1017.4.
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STATEMENT OF FACTS

88.Title XIX of the Social Security Act establishes the federal-state Medicaid
program. See 42 U.S.C. §§1396-1396w-5. The purpose of Medicaid is to furnish,
as far as practicable, “medical assistance on behalf of . . . aged, blind or disabled
individuals, whose income and resources are insufficient to meet the costs of
necessary medical services” and “to help such families and individuals to attain or
retain capability for independence or self-care.” 42 U.S.C. §1396-1.

89. Participation in the Medicaid program by states is voluntary. If a state elects to
participate in the Medicaid program, it must “comply with detailed federally
mandated standards.” Antrican v. Odom, 290 F.3d 178, 183 n.2 (4th Cir. 2002).
Participating states are reimbursed by the federal government for a majority of the
costs of Medicaid benefits. See 42 U.S.C. § 1396b.

90. Participating states must designate a “single state agency” to administer the
Medicaid program. 42 U.S.C. § 1396a(a)(5). Oklahoma has elected to participate
in Medicaid, and the state has designated the Oklahoma Health Care Authority
(OHCA) as its single state agency for administration. See 63 O.S.
§§5000.24-5029.

91. While OHCA is the single state agency for administration of the State Medicaid

program, DHS is the entity responsible for administering the waiver programs,
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including the ADvantage Waiver and the In-Home Supports Waiver for Adults
once established by OHCA. See 56 O.S. § 1017.4.

92.Participation in Medicaid requires Oklahoma, and other participating states, to
cover certain mandatory services. 42 U.S.C. §§ 1396a(a)(10), 1396d(a). In
addition, a state may choose to provide certain optional services. Once a state
chooses to provide an optional service, it must fully adhere to the applicable
requirements of federal law and regulations. See Lankford v. Sherman, 451 F.3d
496, 504 (8th Cir. 2006).

93.Oklahoma has chosen to provide ADvantage Waiver and In-Home Supports
Waivers for Adults programs for vulnerable Oklahomans. More than 20,000
individuals are served by these waivers and are now at serious risk of
institutionalization as a result of Defendant Lake’s arbitrary termination of the
waivers.’

94.The ADvantage Waiver is a program for “frail elderly” persons and adults over the
age of 21 who have a physical disability. Individuals are required to be evaluated
and determined “nursing-home eligible” by nursing staff of DHS’s Aging Services
Division in order to participate in the program. Instead of living in a nursing home,

however, recipients of the ADvantage waiver are able to live in their own home or

"http://www.okdhs.org/OKDHS%20PDF%?20Library/Office%200f%20Communications/
DHSBudgetWorkProgramfor$§69MLossofFunding ocom 10252017.pdf
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the home of a family member. The benefits of this program are manifold and
include fiscal benefits to the state and quality of life benefits to the individual.

95.The In-Home Supports Waiver for Adults is a Medicaid program, operated within
the larger “Home and Community Based Services Waivers” program offered by
the State of Oklahoma for individuals over the age of 18 with an intellectual
disability. See OAC 317:40-1-1. Recipients must meet the Institutional Care
Facility for Individuals with Intellectual Disabilities (ICF/IID) Level of Care
requirements per OAC 317:30-5-122.

96. Without the In-Home Supports Waiver for Adults, recipients would require
placement in an institutional setting.® Instead of being forced to live in an
institution, however, individual recipients of the In-Home Supports Waiver for
Adults live in their own home, foster home, group home, or the home of a family
member. The waiver provides necessary services, such as adaptive equipment,
speech, physical, and occupational therapies, medical supplies, family training,
and nursing services.

97.Defendant Lake’s agency, DHS, has indicated its intent, through written notice to
participants and providers, to arbitrarily terminate both the ADvantage Waiver and

In-Home Supports Waiver for Adults programs effective December 1, 2017.

8 http://www.okhca.org/individuals.aspx?1d=8149
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98.DHS’s written 30-day notices of arbitrary termination provided no opportunity for
participants to have a hearing or to appeal Defendant Lake’s summary decision to
terminate the programs in their entirety.

99.0HCA is required to provide institutional care for Medicaid recipients, including
all waiver recipients at risk of institutionalization resulting from DHS’s arbitrary
termination of the waiver programs.

CLASS ACTION ALLEGATIONS

100. This complaint is brought as a statewide class action pursuant to Fed. R. Civ.
P. 23(a) and (b)(2) on behalf of all current Oklahoma ADvantage Waiver and
In-Home Supports Waiver recipients whose services are set to be eliminated by
Defendants, effective December 1, 2017, and who are at significant risk of
institutionalization as a result of Defendants’ actions.

101. The class is so numerous that joinder of all members is impracticable. DHS
recently reported that 21,147 individuals are served by ADvantage waivers and
1,482 individuals served by In-Home Supports for Adults waivers.” The State has
estimated that half these individuals (and thus in excess of 10,000) are at serious
risk of institutionalization as a result of the arbitrary termination of these critical

services.!?

*http://www.okdhs.org/OKDHS%20PDF%?20Library/Office%200f%20Communications/
DHSBudgetWorkProgramfor§69MLossofFunding ocom 10252017.pdf
Ohttp://newsok.com/without-a-deal-10000-people-could-be-forced-into-nursing-homes/ar
ticle/5569386
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102. All members of this class are subject to the same termination of waiver
services, at the same time, and based on the same common decision.

103. Each member of the class likewise received substantially the same notice of
this common termination decision, as well as the class member’s lack of any
option or means to appeal or pursue alternative non-institutional services.

104. There are questions of law and fact as to the permissibility of the Defendants’
arbitrary policy of terminating waiver programs for Medicaid beneficiaries that are
common to all members of the class.

105. Common questions of law and fact predominate over questions affecting
individual Class Members. These questions of law and fact common to members
of the class include, but are not limited to:

a. the fact that all Plaintiffs and Class Members receive Oklahoma Medicaid
funded waiver services that will be terminated on December 1, 2017, due to
the common action of DHS that applies to all of the Class Members,

b. the fact that this termination places Plaintiffs and Class Members at
significant risk of institutionalization,

c. the fact that neither DHS nor OHCA has developed or offered alternative
options or services to prevent all Plaintiffs and Class Members from being
forced into institutionalization, and

d. the determination of whether Defendants’ actions violate federal law.
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106. Due to these and other common issues of law and fact, the prosecution of
separate actions by individual members of the class would create a risk of
inconsistent or varying adjudications, establishing incompatible rules of law for
the provision of services to people with disabilities served by the waiver programs.

107. Prosecution of separate actions by individual class members would create a
risk of inconsistent or varying adjudications with respect to individual class
members which also would establish incompatible standards of conduct for the
Defendants and could as a practical matter be dispositive of the interests of the
other members or substantially impair or impede their ability to protect their
interests.

108. Defendant Lake’s common termination of all Plaintiffs’ and Class Members’
waiver services without provision for any non-institutional alternatives has
affected and will affect the class generally, thereby making appropriate final
injunctive relief with respect to the class as a whole.

109. Named Plaintiffs will fairly and adequately represent the interests of all
members of the class. Specifically, they are current recipients of the ADvantage or
In-Home Supports Waivers, were informed their waiver services would be
terminated December 1, 2017, and are at risk of institutionalization without waiver

services.
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CAUSES OF ACTION

COUNT I: VIOLATION OF TITLE II OF THE AMERICANS WITH
DISABILITIES ACT

110. Plaintiffs reallege and incorporate herein by reference each and every
allegation and paragraph set forth previously.

111. Defendant Lake is Director of the Oklahoma Department of Human Services
(DHS), which is a public entity under the ADA.

112. Each Plaintiff is a “qualified individual with a disability” within the meaning
of the ADA 1in that they (1) have a physical impairment that substantially limits
one or more major life activities; (2) are capable of safely living in their homes
with necessary services; and (2) meet the essential requirements for the Oklahoma
Medicaid program. 42 U.S.C. § 12131(2).

113. Defendant Lake’s termination of the waiver services that Plaintiffs require in
order to avoid institutional placements, and to remain in the integrated home
settings appropriate to their needs, constitutes unlawful discrimination in violation
of Title IT of the ADA, 42 U.S.C. § 12132.

114. Defendant Lake’s agency (DHS) has arbitrarily implemented a policy to
terminate Plaintiffs’ critical waiver services without reassessment of need or the
provision of replacement services, thereby placing Plaintiffs and Class Members at
imminent risk of institutionalization in violation of the ADA’s integration

mandate.
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115. Defendants have utilized criteria and methods of administration that subject
Plaintiffs and Class Members to discrimination on the basis of disability, including
risk of unnecessary institutionalization, by including but not limited to, the
following:

a. failing to properly assess for replacement services and supports that would
enable Plaintiffs and Class Members to remain in the community;

b. failing to provide alternative waiver or replacement services needed to
enable Plaintiffs and Class Members to remain in the community;

c. basing its decision to terminate the waiver programs solely on economic
considerations not taking into account the assessed needs of the
participants; and

d. allocating resources for institutional versus community long-term care
contrary to the desires and needs of people with disabilities.

116. In enacting the Americans with Disabilities Act, Congress found that
“[i]ndividuals with disabilities continually encounter various forms of
discrimination, including...segregation....” 42 U.S.C. § 12101(a)(5).

117. Title II of the Americans with Disabilities Act provides that “no qualified
individual with a disability shall, by reason of disability, be excluded from
participation in or be denied the benefits of services, programs, or activities of a

public entity or be subjected to discrimination by such entity.” 42 U.S.C. § 12132.
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118. Regulations implementing Title II of the ADA make clear that the ADA
requires that: “A public entity shall administer services, programs, and activities in
the most integrated setting appropriate to the needs of qualified individuals with
disabilities.” 28 C.F.R. § 35.130(d).

119. The U.S. Supreme Court in Olmstead v. L.C. ex rel. Zimring, 527 U.S. 581
(1999), held that the unnecessary institutionalization of individuals with
disabilities is a form of discrimination under Title II of the ADA. In doing so, the
Court interpreted the ADA’s “integration mandate” to require that persons with
disabilities be served in the community when: (1) community-based treatment is
appropriate; (2) the individual does not oppose community placement; and (3)
community placement can be reasonably accommodated. Id. at 607.

120. Defendants have arbitrarily terminated the waiver programs, subjecting
Plaintiffs to discrimination on the basis of disability, by terminating Plaintiffs’
waiver services and failing to assess the needs and provide alternative services to
Plaintiffs to prevent their unnecessary institutionalization.

121. The Olmstead decision and ADA regulations mandate “when treatment
professionals have determined that community placement is appropriate for
disabled individuals, those individuals do not oppose the placement, and the
provision of services would not constitute a “fundamental alteration,” states are

required to place those individuals in community settings rather than institutions.”
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Fisher v. Oklahoma Health Care Authority, 335 F.3d 1175, 1181-82 (10th Cir.
2003), citing Olmstead v. L.C. 527 U.S. at 601-03, 119 S.Ct. 2176.

122. Defendants’ actions thus violate Title II of the ADA."

COUNT II: VIOLATION OF SECTION 504 OF THE REHABILITATION ACT
OF 1973 (29 U.S.C. § 794)

123. Plaintiffs reallege and incorporate herein by reference each and every
allegation and paragraph set forth previously.

124. Each Plaintiff is a “qualified person with a disability” within the meaning of
Section 504, because they (1) have physical and/or mental impairments that
substantially limit one or more major life activities; and (2) meet the essential
eligibility requirements for community-based services under Oklahoma’s
Medicaid programs.

125. Both Defendants conduct, operate, and/or administer programs of the
Oklahoma state Medicaid program, are recipients of federal funds, and therefore

are subject to the requirements of Section 504.

" According to U.S. Department of Justice Guidance, “budget cuts can violate the ADA
and Olmstead when significant funding cuts to community services create a risk of
institutionalization or segregation. The most obvious example of such a risk is where
budget cuts require the elimination or reduction of community services specifically
designed for individuals who would be institutionalized without such services. In making
such budget cuts, public entities have a duty to take all reasonable steps to avoid placing
individuals at risk of institutionalization,” see,

https://www.ada.gov/olmstead/g&a _olmstead.htm.
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126. Defendants’ actions have placed Plaintiffs and Class Members at risk of
unnecessary confinement in institutions, i.e., nursing facilities, rather than the
community, in order to obtain long-term care services, in violation of Section
504’s integration mandate.

127. Defendants have utilized criteria and methods of administration that subject
Plaintiffs and Class Members to discrimination on the basis of disability, including
risk of unnecessary institutionalization, by

a. failing to properly assess for replacement services and supports that would
enable Plaintiffs and Class Members to live in the community,

b. failing to base service decisions on individualized needs assessments
instead of purely economic concerns; and

c. allocating resources for institutional versus long-term care contrary to the
desires and needs of people with disabilities.

128. The denial of waiver services or any suitable alternatives that Plaintiffs require
in order to avoid segregation in institutional placements and to remain in
integrated home settings that are appropriate to their needs constitutes unlawful
discrimination in violation of Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act.

129. Defendants have implemented a policy of administration that subjects Plaintiffs
to discrimination on the basis of disability, including unnecessary institutional

segregation, by failing to ensure that Plaintiffs and Class Members have access to
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Medicaid-covered or state-funded waiver services that meet their needs in the
community and/or requiring Plaintiffs to live in institutional settings in order to
obtain the services they need.

130. Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, on which the ADA is modeled,
sets forth similar protections against discrimination by recipients of federal funds,
such as the Defendants’ agencies. 29 U.S.C. §§ 794-794a. These protections
include the prohibition against unnecessary segregation of people with disabilities.
Regulations implementing Section 504 require that a public entity administer its
services, programs and activities in “the most integrated setting appropriate” to the
needs of qualified individuals with disabilities. 28 C.F.R. § 41.51(d).

131. Section 504’s regulations prohibit recipients of federal financial assistance
from utiliz[ing] criteria or methods of administration...(i) [t]hat have the effect of
subjecting qualified handicapped persons to discrimination on the basis of
handicap [or] (i1) that have the purpose or effect of defeating or substantially
impairing accomplishment of the objectives of the recipient’s program with
respect to handicapped persons. 28 C.F.R. § 41.51(b)(3)(I); 45 C.F.R. § 84.4(b)(4).

PRAYER FOR RELIEF
WHEREFORE, Plaintiffs and Putative Class Members respectfully request that this
Court do the following:

1. Certify this action as a class action;
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2. Designate Plaintiffs as class representatives pursuant to Federal Rule of Civil
Procedure 23, and designating Counsel for Plaintiffs as Counsel for the Class;

3. Declare that Defendants’ policies as set forth above violate Plaintiffs’ and Class
Members’ rights under the American with Disabilities Act and Section 504 of the
Rehabilitation Act by, inter alia:

a. Denying Plaintiffs and Class Members their entitlement to services in the
least restrictive environment; and

b. Discriminating against Plaintiffs and Class Members on the basis of
disability by utilizing methods of administration, adopting and applying
policies, and engaging in practices that result in unnecessary segregation
and institutionalization.

4. Declare that Defendants’ elimination of Plaintiffs’ Medicaid skilled nursing and
rehabilitation services provided through the waiver programs, without the
provision of continuation services in community-based settings which are the most
integrated setting appropriate to the needs of Plaintiffs and Class Members,
together with conditioning the receipt of medically necessary Medicaid services on
segregation in an institutional or non-community setting, violates laws which
prohibit discrimination on the basis of disability, prohibit unjustified

institutionalization and segregation, and which require Defendants to administer
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their services and programs in the most integrated setting appropriate to the needs
of the individual with disabilities, including:
a. The Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA), (42 U.S.C. §§12101-12213).
b. Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act (“Section 504”), (29 U.S.C.
§§794-794a).
. Grant a preliminary and permanent injunction enjoining Defendants, their officers,
agents, employees, attorneys, and all persons who are in active concert or
participation with them from violation of Plaintiffs’ and Class Members’ rights
under the American with Disabilities Act and Section 504 of the Rehabilitation
Act.
. Grant a preliminary and permanent injunction enjoining Defendant Lake, his
officers, agents, employees, attorneys, and all persons who are in active concert or
participation with him from terminating, reducing, or suspending Plaintiffs’ or
Class Members’ waiver benefits or services, including Medicaid skilled nursing,
physical and occupational therapy, and other services to which they are entitled,
until such time as alternative community-based services are provided by
Defendants for each Plaintiff and Class Member.
. Grant a preliminary and permanent injunction compelling Defendants, their

officers, agents, employees, attorneys, and all persons who are in active concert or
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participation with them to take all actions necessary within the scope of their
authority to implement the above injunctions.

8. Maintain the injunctions above until such time as community-based,
non-institutional skilled nursing, physical and occupational rehabilitation therapy,
and other services are provided to the extent required under federal law and so as
to ensure each Plaintiff and Class Member receives the services that meet their
needs in the most integrated setting appropriate to their needs.

9. Award to the Plaintiffs costs and reasonable attorney fees pursuant to 42 U.S.C. §
1988.

10. Order such other relief as this Court deems just and equitable.

Respectfully Submitted,

__s/Brady Henderson ,
Brady R. Henderson, OBA#21212
Amy N. Gioletti, OBA#30566

ACLU of Oklahoma Foundation

P.O. Box 1626

Oklahoma City, OK 73101

(405) 525-3831, (405) 524-2296 (fax)
bhenderson@acluok.org

agioletti@acluok.org

___s/Gary Taylor

Gary Taylor, OBA#8860

Joy Turner, OBA#18482
Oklahoma Disability Law Center
2915 N Classen Blvd # 300
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Oklahoma City, Oklahoma 73106

(405) 525-7755

gary@okdlc.org

joy@okdlc.org

Attorneys for Plaintiffs, and all others similarly
situated
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STATE OF OKLAHOMA
OKLAHOMA DEPARTMENT OF HUMAN SERVICES m
AGING SERVICES e
EXECUTIVE OFFICE Human Scrvices

2401 NW 23" Street Suite 40
Oklahoma City, OK 73107-2422
(405) 521- 2281 Fax (405) 521-2086
www.okdhs.org/aging

October 31, 2017

Dear ADvantage member:

As a result of the Oklahoma Supreme Court ruling that the cigarette fee was
unconstitutional, DHS lost $69 million of state funding for the State Fiscal Year 2018. In
October, DHS was required to submit a revised budget to the Oklahoma Office of
Management and Enterprise Services to fulfill our constitutional requirements for a
balanced budget. Unfortunately, the revised budget resulted in additional reductions to
DHS services.

We regret to inform you DHS must eliminate the ADvantage Waiver effective December 1,
2017. Your participation in the ADvantage Waiver will be funded until November 30, 2017.
Since elimination of the ADvantage Waiver affects everyone receiving services through it,
there is no right to appeal this action.

We sincerely regret this action. Should the state Legislature act to restore funding for the
ADvantage Waiver before December 1, 2017, DHS will notify you as quickly as possible.

Sincerely,

Kjren Poteet, Interim Director

Aging Services

Exhibit 1
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OKLAHOMA DEPARTMENT OF HUMAN SERVICES
Sequoyah Memaorial Office Building
PO Box 25352
Oklahoma City, OK 73125-0325
{405) 521-3571 » www.okdhs.org

Developmental
Disabilities
Services

October 31, 2017

nfgarem fee t:hat: was ruled unco
.down, additional DHS mducﬁam becme n&m&my

We regret to nfom mx leiﬁ muﬁteﬁmim the Muw !mﬂnme Support Waiwr effective mcambar 1, zmv This

cancellation is legally required 30 days prior to the effective date. Should the state Legislature act

ding r these services prior “mmwmmmmcm "\Mnladw«m& nHSwiﬂ,mnd nﬁ””'“‘tna!l

inammw e :

QP participation in this Waiver will be funded unti 11 30/17. Since Since elimination wmm m

e . e u‘ - w"“ o ,,W e

mmp Wal atm mn vmmwm rough m there s norig m awm:smm

o ”m,,\ L G / g \T"M’w . »

“‘(’J‘H L ‘t Bl L utﬂm vmn L d& Sl "mr Ni i :
- mm wm 's names will mﬁm ~ verservices
. W“um L ‘, » ,\,K" ”‘,,‘ ' - ~ T . w,' s ,Q,;\hw o L . "f»k‘rm w}' e \g B w‘ - ~, ; x‘ L ”a M L ”“L;i:\w’?’f\'f . - :{w:mm\rﬁ*\‘\\’ﬁ\/ﬁ G ‘11’:‘"‘A\,M’\\r - )L»‘ “‘”R,‘ 1“” - . '“J”
- , | r ”m d . ‘,< m . ‘\\;, - . -ﬁﬁ . . ‘:\(‘a‘rv&m\mn
’ M\,,fm,,m\g\ ol i \,M,M,M e ,,‘, g " ~ r\u iy o 7 ,\ e fy ‘, ¢ m,m\w :\\,‘ 2 Viwiode ‘\5”\,»,,0 ... ‘w’ﬁa«‘\?\f’g\m; .
. . o L .

i
o \‘W* P \‘
. \\, - . - \Mm‘//n\mm,‘ .
\ - L L e o o

- ,\ L




Case 5:17-cv-01236d—i€,| E@Whls?l_l |J:=|J£efl 11/17/17 Page 1 of 2

The JS 44 civil cover sheet and the information contained herein neither replace nor supplement the filing and service of pleadings or other papers as required by law, except as
provided by local rules of court. This form, approved by the Judicial Conference of the United States in September 1974, is required for the use of the Clerk of Court for the
purpose of initiating the civil docket sheet. (SEE INSTRUCTIONS ON NEXT PAGE OF THIS FORM.)

JS 44 (Rev.06/17)

FENDANTS .
(BEd EgLe',At')“lrector, Oklahoma Dept. of Human Services
(2) Becky Pasternik-lkard, CEO, Oklahoma Health Care Authority

I(l)(?-‘-zlcﬁal'rdA}lma—elrFsgﬁ (2) Lonnette Hay (legal guardian of Trevor Hay
and Taren Hay), (3) Janis Harris (legal guardian of Rhonda Cassell), (4)
Lance & Sherry Davis (legal guardians of Tomas Davis), (5) Lori Taylor
(b) County of Residence of First Listed Plaintiff ~ Cleveland County
(EXCEPT IN U.S. PLAINTIFF CASES)

County of Residence of First Listed Defendant ~ Oklahoma County
(IN U.S. PLAINTIFF CASES ONLY)

IN LAND CONDEMNATION CASES, USE THE LOCATION OF
THE TRACT OF LAND INVOLVED.

NOTE:

() Attorneys (Firm Name, Address, and Telephone Number) Attorneys (If Known)
Brady Henderson, ACLU of Oklahoma, PO Box 1626, Oklahoma City,
OK 73101, (405) 525-3831

Gary Taylor, ODLC, 2915 Classen Blvd #300, Oklahoma City, OK 73106

Il. BASIS OF JURISDICTION (Place an “X’” in One Box Only) I11. CITIZENSHIP OF PRINCIPAL PARTIES (Place an “X”” in One Box for Plaintiff
(For Diversity Cases Only) and One Box for Defendant)
O 1 U.S. Government A 3 Federal Question PTF  DEF PTF DEF
Plaintiff (U.S. Government Not a Party) Citizen of This State O 1 3 1 Incorporated or Principal Place O4 04
of Business In This State
0 2 U.S. Government O 4 Diversity Citizen of Another State @ 2 3 2 Incorporated and Principal Place g5 O35
Defendant (Indicate Citizenship of Parties in Item 1) of Business In Another State
Citizen or Subject of a @ 3 [ 3 Foreign Nation o6 06
Foreign Country

IV. NATURE OF SUIT (Place an “X” in One Box Only) Click here for: Nature of Suit Code Descriptions.

| CONTRACT TORTS FORFEITURE/PENALTY BANKRUPTCY OTHER STATUTES ]
O 110 Insurance PERSONAL INJURY PERSONAL INJURY |3 625 Drug Related Seizure 0 422 Appeal 28 USC 158 0 375 False Claims Act
0 120 Marine 3 310 Airplane O 365 Personal Injury - of Property 21 USC 881 |3 423 Withdrawal 3 376 Qui Tam (31 USC
0 130 Miller Act 3 315 Airplane Product Product Liability 3 690 Other 28 USC 157 3729(a))
O 140 Negotiable Instrument Liability O 367 Health Care/ O 400 State Reapportionment
0 150 Recovery of Overpayment |3 320 Assault, Libel & Pharmaceutical PROPERTY RIGHTS 3 410 Antitrust
& Enforcement of Judgment Slander Personal Injury 3 820 Copyrights 3 430 Banks and Banking
0 151 Medicare Act 3 330 Federal Employers’ Product Liability 7 830 Patent 7 450 Commerce
O 152 Recovery of Defaulted Liability [ 368 Asbestos Personal 3 835 Patent - Abbreviated 3 460 Deportation
Student Loans 3 340 Marine Injury Product New Drug Application |3 470 Racketeer Influenced and
(Excludes Veterans) 3 345 Marine Product Liability 3 840 Trademark Corrupt Organizations
O 153 Recovery of Overpayment Liability PERSONAL PROPERTY LABOR SOCIAL SECURITY 0 480 Consumer Credit
of Veteran’s Benefits 3 350 Motor Vehicle 3 370 Other Fraud [ 710 Fair Labor Standards 0 861 HIA (1395ff) 7 490 Cable/Sat TV
O 160 Stockholders’ Suits 3 355 Motor Vehicle O 371 Truth in Lending Act 3 862 Black Lung (923) O 850 Securities/Commodities/
0 190 Other Contract Product Liability 3 380 Other Personal 3 720 Labor/Management 0 863 DIWC/DIWW (405(g)) Exchange
3 195 Contract Product Liability |3 360 Other Personal Property Damage Relations 3 864 SSID Title XVI [ 890 Other Statutory Actions
0 196 Franchise Injury [ 385 Property Damage O 740 Railway Labor Act 3 865 RSI (405(q)) 3 891 Agricultural Acts
3 362 Personal Injury - Product Liability 0 751 Family and Medical 3 893 Environmental Matters
Medical Malpractice Leave Act 3 895 Freedom of Information
| REAL PROPERTY. CIVIL RIGHTS PRISONER PETITIONS | 790 Other Labor Litigation FEDERAL TAX SUITS Act
3 210 Land Condemnation 3 440 Other Civil Rights Habeas Corpus: 3 791 Employee Retirement 3 870 Taxes (U.S. Plaintiff 3 896 Arbitration
O 220 Foreclosure 3 441 Voting O 463 Alien Detainee Income Security Act or Defendant) 3 899 Administrative Procedure
O 230 Rent Lease & Ejectment 3 442 Employment 3 510 Motions to Vacate 3 871 IRS—Third Party Act/Review or Appeal of
3 240 Torts to Land 3 443 Housing/ Sentence 26 USC 7609 Agency Decision
0 245 Tort Product Liability Accommodations 3 530 General 3 950 Constitutionality of
3 290 All Other Real Property 3 445 Amer. w/Disabilities - | O 535 Death Penalty IMMIGRATION State Statutes
Employment Other: O 462 Naturalization Application
X 446 Amer. w/Disabilities - | 7 540 Mandamus & Other | 465 Other Immigration
Other 3 550 Civil Rights Actions
[ 448 Education [ 555 Prison Condition
3 560 Civil Detainee -
Conditions of
Confinement

V. ORIGIN (Place an “X” in One Box Only)

X1 Original 0 2 Removed from
Proceeding State Court

A 3 Remanded from
Appellate Court

[ 4 Reinstated or
Reopened

O 5 Transferred from
Another District
(specify)

[ 6 Multidistrict
Litigation -
Transfer

3 8 Multidistrict
Litigation -
Direct File

Cite the U.S. Civil Statute under which you are filing (Do not cite jurisdictional statutes unless diversity):
Americans with Disabilities Act, 42 USC 12131 et seq.

VI. CAUSE OF ACTION Brief description of cause:

Case seeking to enjoin termination of community disability services to stop the resultant forced institutionalization

VII. REQUESTED IN (@ CHECK IF THIS IS A CLASS ACTION

DEMAND $

CHECK YES only if demanded in complaint:

COMPLAINT: UNDER RULE 23, F.R.Cv.P. JURY DEMAND: 0 Yes XNo
VIIl. RELATED CASE(S)
IE ANY (See instructions): JUDGE DOCKET NUMBER
DATE SIGNATURE OF ATTORNEY OF RECORD
11/17/2017 s/ Brady Henderson
FOR OFFICE USE ONLY
RECEIPT # AMOUNT APPLYING IFP JUDGE MAG. JUDGE

I




IS 44Reverse (Rev.0617)  Case 5:17-cv-01236-HE Document 1-3 Filed 11/17/17 Page 2 of 2

INSTRUCTIONS FOR ATTORNEYS COMPLETING CIVIL COVER SHEET FORM JS 44
Authority For Civil Cover Sheet

The JS 44 civil cover sheet and the information contained herein neither replaces nor supplements the filings and service of pleading or other papers as
required by law, except as provided by local rules of court. This form, approved by the Judicial Conference of the United States in September 1974, is
required for the use of the Clerk of Court for the purpose of initiating the civil docket sheet. Consequently, a civil cover sheet is submitted to the Clerk of
Court for each civil complaint filed. The attorney filing a case should complete the form as follows:

1.(a)

(b)

(©

VI.

VIL

VIIL.

Plaintiffs-Defendants. Enter names (last, first, middle initial) of plaintiff and defendant. If the plaintiff or defendant is a government agency, use
only the full name or standard abbreviations. If the plaintiff or defendant is an official within a government agency, identify first the agency and
then the official, giving both name and title.

County of Residence. For each civil case filed, except U.S. plaintiff cases, enter the name of the county where the first listed plaintiff resides at the
time of filing. In U.S. plaintiff cases, enter the name of the county in which the first listed defendant resides at the time of filing. (NOTE: In land
condemnation cases, the county of residence of the "defendant™ is the location of the tract of land involved.)

Attorneys. Enter the firm name, address, telephone number, and attorney of record. If there are several attorneys, list them on an attachment, noting
in this section "(see attachment)".

Jurisdiction. The basis of jurisdiction is set forth under Rule 8(a), F.R.Cv.P., which requires that jurisdictions be shown in pleadings. Place an X"
in one of the boxes. If there is more than one basis of jurisdiction, precedence is given in the order shown below.

United States plaintiff. (1) Jurisdiction based on 28 U.S.C. 1345 and 1348. Suits by agencies and officers of the United States are included here.
United States defendant. (2) When the plaintiff is suing the United States, its officers or agencies, place an "X" in this box.

Federal question. (3) This refers to suits under 28 U.S.C. 1331, where jurisdiction arises under the Constitution of the United States, an amendment
to the Constitution, an act of Congress or a treaty of the United States. In cases where the U.S. is a party, the U.S. plaintiff or defendant code takes
precedence, and box 1 or 2 should be marked.

Diversity of citizenship. (4) This refers to suits under 28 U.S.C. 1332, where parties are citizens of different states. When Box 4 is checked, the
citizenship of the different parties must be checked. (See Section 111 below; NOTE: federal question actions take precedence over diversity
cases.)

Residence (citizenship) of Principal Parties. This section of the JS 44 is to be completed if diversity of citizenship was indicated above. Mark this
section for each principal party.

Nature of Suit. Place an "X" in the appropriate box. If there are multiple nature of suit codes associated with the case, pick the nature of suit code
that is most applicable. Click here for: Nature of Suit Code Descriptions.

Origin. Place an "X" in one of the seven boxes.

Original Proceedings. (1) Cases which originate in the United States district courts.

Removed from State Court. (2) Proceedings initiated in state courts may be removed to the district courts under Title 28 U.S.C., Section 1441.
When the petition for removal is granted, check this box.

Remanded from Appellate Court. (3) Check this box for cases remanded to the district court for further action. Use the date of remand as the filing
date.

Reinstated or Reopened. (4) Check this box for cases reinstated or reopened in the district court. Use the reopening date as the filing date.
Transferred from Another District. (5) For cases transferred under Title 28 U.S.C. Section 1404(a). Do not use this for within district transfers or
multidistrict litigation transfers.

Multidistrict Litigation — Transfer. (6) Check this box when a multidistrict case is transferred into the district under authority of Title 28 U.S.C.
Section 1407.

Multidistrict Litigation — Direct File. (8) Check this box when a multidistrict case is filed in the same district as the Master MDL docket.
PLEASE NOTE THAT THERE IS NOT AN ORIGIN CODE 7. Origin Code 7 was used for historical records and is no longer relevant due to
changes in statue.

Cause of Action. Report the civil statute directly related to the cause of action and give a brief description of the cause. Do not cite jurisdictional
statutes unless diversity. Example: U.S. Civil Statute: 47 USC 553 Brief Description: Unauthorized reception of cable service

Requested in Complaint. Class Action. Place an "X" in this box if you are filing a class action under Rule 23, F.R.Cv.P.
Demand. In this space enter the actual dollar amount being demanded or indicate other demand, such as a preliminary injunction.
Jury Demand. Check the appropriate box to indicate whether or not a jury is being demanded.

Related Cases. This section of the JS 44 is used to reference related pending cases, if any. If there are related pending cases, insert the docket
numbers and the corresponding judge names for such cases.

Date and Attorney Signature. Date and sign the civil cover sheet.



ClassAction.org

This complaint is part of ClassAction.org's searchable class action lawsuit database and can be found in this
post: Class Action Seeksto Halt Decision to Terminate Waivers for Certain Medicaid Services in Oklahoma



https://www.classaction.org/news/class-action-seeks-to-halt-decision-to-terminate-waivers-for-certain-medicaid-services-in-oklahoma

	MEMORANDUM



